
 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
To The Members of Prerana Hospital Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prerana Hospital Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.  
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  
 
 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Directors' report and its annexures, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.  
 

 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information  and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 

 If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.  

 
 



 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income , cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 
 
 
 



 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors 
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
Other Matter  
 
The financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 prepared in accordance 
with Ind AS included in the financial statements, representing the comparative and opening balances 
in these financial statements, were audited by the predecessor auditor. The audit report of the 
predecessor auditor dated 20 July 2020, on such financial information, expressed an unmodified 
opinion. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company.  
 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.  
 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply the Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act. 
 



 

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on 31 March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the 
Act. 
 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting.  
 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with 
the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us:  

 
(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 

position in its financial statements. 
 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.  

 
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S) 
 
 
 
 
Jaideep S. Trasi 
(Partner) 
(Membership No. 211095) 
(UDIN: 21211095AAAACK5555) 

 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 29 July 2021 



 

 

 
ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Prerana Hospital Limited 
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 



 

 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 
 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S) 
 
 
 
 
Jaideep S. Trasi 
(Partner) 
(Membership No. 211095) 
(UDIN: 21211095AAAACK5555) 

 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 29 July 2021 



 

 

 
ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of 
our report of even date)  
 
(i) (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. 
 

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a 
phased manner over a period of 2 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the 
year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 
(c) With respect to immovable properties of land and buildings that are freehold, 

according to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined 
by us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we 
report that, the title deeds of such immovable properties are held in the name of the 
Company as at the balance sheet date. 

 
(ii) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the 

Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical 
verification. 
 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.  
 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provide guarantees and hence 
reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposit during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at 31 March 2021 
and therefore the provisions of clause (v) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of healthcare services rendered. We have 
broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies 
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, 
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, 
not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they 
are accurate or complete.  
 

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:  
 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service 
Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. 
 
 



 

 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, 
Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in 
arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable. 

 
(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, 

Goods and Services Tax and Value Added Tax as on 31 March 2021 on account of 
disputes. 

  
(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company did not 
have any loans or borrowings from financial institutions and government. The Company has 
not issued any debentures.  
 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised 
by way of term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for 
which they were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application of 
proceeds. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer / further public 
offer (including debt instruments). 
 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year.   
 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is 
not applicable.  
 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is 
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
 

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year 
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of 
its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 
 



 

 

 
(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. 
 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 008072S) 
 
 
 
 
Jaideep S. Trasi 
(Partner) 
(Membership No. 211095) 
(UDIN: 21211095AAAACK5555) 

 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 29 July 2021 



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

Note  As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

Assets
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 4                       6,38,118.86                  6,47,759.54                  
Capital work-in-progress 1,46,070.47                  1,04,193.57                  
Other Intangible assets 5                       5,325.41                       432.76                          
Financial assets

Investments 6                       10.00                            10.00                            
Loans 7                       1,925.69                       2,345.69                       
Other financial assets 8                       5,297.64                       205.23                          

Income tax assets (net) 30                     27,469.67                     69,987.52                     
Other non-current assets 9                       39,263.94                     15,302.52                     
Total non-current assets 8,63,481.68                  8,40,236.83                  

Current assets 
Inventories 10                     6,711.86                       7,424.67                       
Financial assets

Trade receivables 11                     61,906.91                     56,162.58                     
Cash and cash equivalents 12                     82,186.60                     19,938.60                     
Other bank balances 13                     602.03                          10,331.82                     
Other financial assets 8                       4,276.94                       5,062.02                       

Other current assets 9                       2,323.27                       5,193.31                       
Total current assets 1,58,007.61                  1,04,113.00                  

Total assets 10,21,489.29                9,44,349.83                  

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 14                     41,396.66                     41,396.66                     
Other equity 2,99,246.35                  2,75,352.90                  
Equity attributable to owners of company 3,40,643.01                  3,16,749.56                  

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities 
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 15                     4,32,965.05                  3,84,173.66                  
Provisions 17                     4,548.52                       1,963.52                       
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 30                     68,360.00                     68,360.00                     
Total non-current liabilities 5,05,873.57                  4,54,497.18                  

Current liabilities 
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 15                     -                                54,814.53                     
Trade payables 19                     

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                                -                                
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 71,838.97                     65,965.17                     

      Other financial liabilities 16                     99,438.98                     45,776.71                     
Other current liabilities 18                     3,694.76                       5,904.73                       
Provisions 17                     -                                641.95                          
Total current liabilities 1,74,972.71                  1,73,103.09                  

Total equity and liabilities 10,21,489.29                9,44,349.83                  

Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements Note 1 to 43

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Firm registration number: 008072S CIN: U85110PN1996PLC104292

Jaideep S. Trasi Dr. U. B. Damale           Dr. S. M. Navare
Partner                                                 Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 211095 DIN 00333654 DIN 00334421
Bengaluru Kolhapur  Kolhapur
29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

Note  Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

Income 
Revenue from operations 20               6,93,219.07                   7,20,615.37                   
Other income 21               4,660.67                        1,865.37                        
Total income 6,97,879.74                   7,22,480.74                   

Expenses
Purchases of medicines and consumables 22               1,85,238.58                   1,58,263.48                   
Changes in inventories 23               705.08                            (258.31)                          
Professional fees to consultant doctors 24               1,37,594.02                   1,54,169.52                   
Laboratory outsourcing charges 25               6,334.28                        6,482.63                        
Employee benefits expense 26               1,60,039.25                   1,65,207.21                   
Finance costs 27               38,524.09                      45,178.97                      
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 28               22,958.53                      25,221.72                      
Other expenses 29               1,19,662.34                   1,17,283.31                   
Total expenses 6,71,056.17                   6,71,548.53                   

26,823.57                      50,932.21                      
Tax expense

Current tax 30               2,015.12                        -                                 
Deferred tax 30               -                                 679.87                            

Total Tax expense 2,015.12                        679.87                            

Profit for the year 24,808.45                      50,252.34                      

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability (915.00)                          (2,443.82)                       
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -                                 679.87                            

Total Comprehensive income for the year 23,893.45                      48,488.39                      

Earnings per share (equity share of face value of INR 10 each) 32               
Basic 5.99                                12.14                              
Diluted 5.99                                12.14                              

Significant accounting policies 3                  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements Note 1 to 43

As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for  and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Firm registration number: 008072S CIN: U85110PN1996PLC104292

Jaideep S. Trasi Dr. U. B. Damale            Dr. S. M. Navare
Partner                                                 Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 211095 DIN 00333654 DIN 00334421
Bengaluru Kolhapur Kolhapur
29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021

Profit before tax



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

 Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 26,823.57             50,932.21                  
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 22,958.53             25,221.71                  
Finance costs 38,524.09             45,178.97                  
Interest income (634.34)                 (373.95)                      
Allowances for credit losses on financial assets 11,191.50             10,477.67                  
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) -                        (17.22)                        
Liabilities no longer required written back 403.25                  (1,474.21)                   
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 99,266.60             1,29,945.18               
Movements in Working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables             (16,935.83)                  (21,697.43)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories                    712.81                       (385.22)
(Increase)/decrease in loans, other financial assets and other assets             (24,978.71)                      4,926.45 
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables                 5,470.55                       (482.60)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions                 1,028.05                    (1,243.64)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities                 4,875.67                    (3,981.60)
Cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 69,439.14             1,07,081.14               
Taxes paid, net of refund received               40,502.73 (16,539.06)                 
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) 1,09,941.87          90,542.08                  
Cash flows from investing activities
Movement in other bank balances and restricted deposits 9,729.79               (10,331.82)                 
Interest received                    634.34 373.95                       
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment             (60,087.39) (58,760.73)                 
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment                           -   39.70                         
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities (B) (49,723.26)            (68,678.90)                 
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance cost             (38,524.09) (53,338.13)                 
Long term secured loans availed            1,13,822.60 35,400.00                  
Long term secured loans repaid             (18,454.59) (43,413.16)                 
Current borrowings (repaid)/availed, net             (54,814.53) 50,012.02                  
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C) 2,029.39               (11,339.27)                 
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 62,248.00             10,523.91                  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 19,938.60                                  9,414.69 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 82,186.60             19,938.60                  

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2021

Fair value/other 
changes

Foreign exchange

Non Current Borrowings (including current maturities)      4,10,731.38 1,13,822.60     (18,454.59)                                    -                             -   5,06,099.39               
Current Borrowings         54,814.53 -                  (54,814.53)                                    -                             -   -                             
Total 4,65,545.91     1,13,822.60     (73,269.12)                                    -                             -   5,06,099.39               

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended 31 March 2020

Fair value/other 
changes

Foreign exchange

Non Current Borrowings (including current maturities)      4,18,744.54 35,400.00        (43,413.16)                                    -                             -   4,10,731.38               
Current Borrowings           4,802.51 50,012.02        -                                                -                             -   54,814.53                  
Total 4,23,547.05     85,412.02        (43,413.16)                                    -                             -   4,65,545.91               

(Refer to note 12 - Cash and cash equivalents)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements Note 1 to 43
As per our report of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Chartered Accountants CIN: U85110PN1996PLC104292
Firm registration number: 008072S

Jaideep S. Trasi Dr. U. B. Damale Dr. S. M. Navare
Partner                                                 Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 211095 DIN 00333654 DIN 00334421
Bengaluru Kolhapur Kolhapur
29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021

 As at 
1 April 2019

 Non cash changes  As at 
31 March 2020

Particulars  Cash inflows  Cash outflows 

Particulars

Particulars  Cash inflows  As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
1 April 2020

 Cash outflows  Non cash changes 



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

A. Equity share capital

Note Equity shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 4,139.67                     41,396.66             
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 14 -                             -                       
As at 31 March 2020 4,139.67                     41,396.66             
Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21 14 -                             -                       

  As at 31 March 2021 4,139.67                     41,396.66             

B Other equity
Items of other comprehensive 

income
Securities 
premium

Capital reserve General reserve Capital redemption 
reserve

Retained earnings Remeasurement of defined benefit 
liability/ (asset), net of tax

Balance as at 1 April 2019 3,35,493.03    170.54                        255.00                  3,000.00                         (1,12,054.06)                    -                                                   2,26,864.51                       
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2020
  Profit for the year -                 -                             -                       -                                 50,252.34                         -                                                   50,252.34                          
  Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax -                 -                             -                       -                                 -                                   (1,763.95)                                         (1,763.95)                           
Total comprehensive income / (loss) -                 -                             -                       -                                 50,252.34                         (1,763.95)                                         48,488.39                          
Transferred to retained earnings -                 -                             -                       -                                 (1,763.95)                         1,763.95                                          -                                    

Balance as at 31 March 2020 3,35,493.03    170.54                        255.00                  3,000.00                         (63,565.67)                       -                                                   2,75,352.90                       

Balance as at 1 April 2020 3,35,493.03    170.54                        255.00                  3,000.00                         (63,565.67)                       -                                                   2,75,352.90                       
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2021

Profit for the year -                 -                             -                       -                                 24,808.45                         -                                                   24,808.45                          
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax -                 -                             -                       -                                 -                                   (915.00)                                            (915.00)                              

Total comprehensive income / (loss) -                 -                             -                       -                                 24,808.45                         (915.00)                                            23,893.45                          
Transferred to retained earnings -                 -                             -                       -                                 (915.00)                            915.00                                             -                                    

Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,35,493.03    170.54                        255.00                  3,000.00                         (39,672.22)                       -                                                   2,99,246.35                       

The description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is as follows:

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriate purposes.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements Note 1 to 43

As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Firm registration number: 008072S CIN: U85110PN1996PLC104292

Jaideep S. Trasi Dr. U. B. Damale               Dr. S. M. Navare
Partner                                                 Managing Director Whole-time Director
Membership No.: 211095 DIN 00333654 DIN 00334421
Bengaluru Kolhapur Kolhapur
29 July 2021 29 July 2021 29 July 2021

Capital Redemption Reserve and Capital Reserve  is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus Total other equity 
attributable to equity 

holders of the Company



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

4 Property, plant and equipment 

 Particulars  Freehold land  Buildings   Leasehold 
improvements 

 Furniture 
and fixtures 

 Electrical 
equipment 

 Plant and 
equipment 

 Computer 
equipment 

 Medical 
equipment Books  Motor 

Vehicles 
 Total

Gross carrying value

Balance at 1 April 2019 3,33,000.00    2,40,120.05    11,383.72         63,124.08    47,100.76   68,699.87   10,684.74   2,61,705.10    315.81   1,966.45   10,38,100.59    
Additions -                  -                  -                    436.78         435.10        43.44          1,468.69     8,958.67         -        -            11,342.68         
Disposals -                  -                  -                    -               (204.99)       -              -              -                  -        -            (204.99)             
Balance at 31 March 2020 3,33,000.00    2,40,120.05    11,383.72         63,560.86    47,330.87   68,743.31   12,153.43   2,70,663.77    315.81   1,966.45   10,49,238.28    

Balance at 1 April 2020 3,33,000.00    2,40,120.05    11,383.72         63,560.86    47,330.87   68,743.31   12,153.43   2,70,663.77    315.81   1,966.45   10,49,238.28    
Additions -                  -                  -                    168.53         331.32        108.17        5,758.42     6,017.78         156.57   -            12,540.79         
Disposals -                  -                  -                    -               -              -              -              -                  -        -            -                    
Balance at 31 March 2021 3,33,000.00    2,40,120.05    11,383.72         63,729.39    47,662.19   68,851.48   17,911.85   2,76,681.55    472.38   1,966.45   10,61,779.07    

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at 1 April 2019 -                  39,715.63       5,984.93           59,869.92    46,279.97   64,071.87   8,837.99     1,50,566.73    89.82     1,300.80   3,76,717.68      
Depreciation for the year -                  3,801.90         3,183.78           421.36         119.15        321.46        1,101.84     15,661.54       44.06     288.48      24,943.57         
Eliminated on disposal -                  -                  -                    -               (182.51)       -              -              -                  -        -            (182.51)             
Balance at 31 March 2020 -                 43,517.53       9,168.71           60,291.28    46,216.61   64,393.33   9,939.83     1,66,228.27    133.88   1,589.28   4,01,478.74      

Balance at 1 April 2020 -                 43,517.53       9,168.71           60,291.28    46,216.61   64,393.33   9,939.83     1,66,228.27    133.88   1,589.28   4,01,478.74      
Depreciation for the year -                  3,639.22         1,712.26           449.01         147.42        321.28        2,184.92     13,495.58       67.10     164.69      22,181.48         
Eliminated on disposal -                  -                  -                    -               -              -              -              -                  -        -            -                    
Balance at 31 March 2021 -                 47,156.75       10,880.97         60,740.29    46,364.03   64,714.61   12,124.75   1,79,723.85    200.98   1,753.97   4,23,660.22      

Carrying amounts (net) -                    
At 31 March 2021 3,33,000.00    1,92,963.30    502.75              2,989.10      1,298.16     4,136.87     5,787.10     96,957.70       271.40   212.48      6,38,118.86      
At 31 March 2020 3,33,000.00    1,96,602.52    2,215.01           3,269.58      1,114.26     4,349.98     2,213.60     1,04,435.50    181.93   377.17      6,47,759.54      

a) For details of property, plant and equipment pledged, refer Note 15



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

5 Other Intangible assets

 Computer Software 

Gross carrying value
Balance at 1 April 2019 4,398.94                      
Additions 77.11                           
Balance at 31 March 2020 4,476.05                      

Balance at 1 April 2020 4,476.05                      
Additions 5,669.70                      
Balance at 31 March 2021 10,145.75                    

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 April 2019 3,765.14                      
Amortisation for the year 278.15                         
Balance at 31 March 2020 4,043.29                      

Balance at 1 April 2020 4,043.29                      
Amortisation for the year 777.05                         
Balance at 31 March 2021 4,820.34                      

Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2021 5,325.41                      
At 31 March 2020 432.76                         



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

6      Investments
Non-current investments, unquoted 
Investments in equity instruments of companies (at cost)
Janata Sahakari Bank Limited, Pune 
1,000 (31st March 2020: 1,000) equity shares of INR 10 each

10.00                   10.00                 

10.00                   10.00                 

Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investments 10.00                   10.00                 

7      Loans
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Rent and other deposits 1,925.69              2,345.69            

1,925.69              2,345.69            

8      Other financial assets
Non-current

Fixed deposits * 5,297.64              205.23               
5,297.64              205.23               

Current
Unsecured, considered good
Unbilled receivables 4,276.94              5,062.02            

4,276.94              5,062.02            

9      Other assets
Non-current
Advances for capital goods 39,263.94            15,302.52           

39,263.94            15,302.52           

Current
Prepaid expenses 1,255.27              3,669.00            
Advances for supply of goods and services 1,068.00              1,524.31            

2,323.27              5,193.31            

10     Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Medicines and medical consumables 6,182.27              6,887.36            
Stores and spares 529.59                 537.31               

6,711.86              7,424.67            
For details of inventories pledged, refer note 15

11     Trade receivables 
Current
Considered good - Unsecured 77,174.36            77,059.52           
Less: loss allowance (15,267.45)           (20,896.94)         
Net trade receivables 61,906.91            56,162.58           

The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 38.

Particulars (Ageing) Gross receivables % of Provisions
Due date to 1 year 65,138.91            13%
1-2 years 4,283.97              39%
More than 2 years 7,751.48              100%

12     Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks 
- in current accounts 81,316.70            18,758.17           
Cash on hand 869.90                 1,180.43            

82,186.60            19,938.60           

13     Other bank balances
Balance in banks for margin money 602.03                 10,331.82           

602.03                 10,331.82           

* The above deposits are maintained against guarantees issued by Banks and are restricted for periods exceeding 12 months as at the Balance Sheet date.



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

14      Share capital  Number of shares 
(in thousands)

Amount  Number of shares 
(in thousands)

Amount 

Authorised 
Equity shares of INR 10 each 5,000                       50,000          5,000                       50,000               

5,000                       50,000          5,000                       50,000               

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of INR 10 each 4,139.67                  41,396.66     4,139.67                  41,396.66          

4,139.67                  41,396.66     4,139.67                  41,396.66          

(a)

(b) Shares held by ultimate holding company

Particulars  Number of shares 
(in thousands)

Amount  Number of shares 
(in thousands)

Amount 

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up held by 
Aster DM Healthcare Limited, Holding and Ultimate holding company 3,600.99                  36,009.91     3,600.99                  36,009.91          

(c) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of reporting period

Particulars  Number of shares 
(in thousands)

Amount  Number of shares 
(in thousands)

Amount 

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up
At the beginning of the year 4,139.67                  41,396.66     4,139.67                  41,396.66          
Add: issued during the year -                          -                -                          -                    
At the end of the year 4,139.666                41,396.66     4,139.666                41,396.66          

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company 

Particulars  Number of shares 
(in thousands)

%  Number of shares 
(in thousands)

%

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up held by 
Aster DM Healthcare Limited, India 3,601                       87.00% 3,601                       87.00%

(e) 

(f) Details of bonus shares issued during the past 5 years: Nil

(g) Details of shares issued for consideration other than for cash during the past 5 years: Nil

(h) Details of buyback of shares during the past 5 years: Nil

As at As at 

  As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares. All equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to 
receive dividend as declared from time to time and subject to dividend payable to preference shareholder. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of 
hands) is in proportion to the shareholders' share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other 
sums presently payable have not been paid.
Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.
On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in 
proportion to the number of equity shares held.

 As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020

Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts: Nil

 As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

15      Borrowings 
Non-current
Secured - at amortised cost
Term loans from banks 4,32,965.05        3,84,173.66        
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 73,134.35           26,557.72           

5,06,099.40        4,10,731.38        
Less: Amount included under 'other financials liabilities' (refer note 16) (73,134.35)          (26,557.72)          

4,32,965.05        3,84,173.66        
Current
Secured - at amortised cost
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks -                      54,814.53           

-                      54,814.53           

Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are included in note 38

I Details of securities, terms and conditions on loans 
A Term loans from banks

B

II

16      Other financial liabilities
Current
Current maturities of long-term borrowings * 73,134.35           26,557.72           
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings * 8,612.83             4,175.00             
Dues to creditors for capital goods 599.75                7,422.96             
Dues to related party (Refer note 37) 17,092.03           7,621.05             

99,438.98           45,776.71           
* The details of interest rates, repayment and other terms are disclosed in note 15
The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to the above financial liabilities is disclosed in note 38

Note 1: Term loan from Yes Bank was availed in December 2016 and is repayable in 32 quarterly instalments starting from December 2016. The loan carries an interest of Yes
Bank yearly MCLR rate plus 1.50% per annum. On 1st October 2020 same loan was taken over by HDFC Bank Ltd for remaining tenure at interest rate of yearly MCLR rate plus
0.75%. The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on all current and movable fixed assets, both present and future, corporate
guarantee of Aster DM Healthcare Limited, the holding company.
Note 2: Term loan from Yes Bank was availed in April 2019 and is repayable in 36 quarterly instalment commencing after 8 quarters of moratorium period. The loan carries an
interest of Yes Bank's yearly MCLR rate plus 1.50% per annum. On 1st October same loan was taken over by HDFC Bank Ltd for remaining tenure at interest rate of yearly
MCLR rate plus 0.75%. The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on all current and movable fixed assets, both present and
future, corporate guarantee of Aster DM Healthcare Limited, the holding company

Note 5: Cash credit and overdraft facility from banks are availed and carries and interest of yearly MCLR rate plus 0.75% . The facility is secured by way of an equitable
mortgage of immovable assets, exclusive charge on all current and movable assets, both present and future, corporate guarantee of Aster DM Healthcare Limited, the holding
company.

Note 4: There are no defaults in repayment of principal or interest to lenders as at the balance sheet date.
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from banks

For the year ended 31 March 2021, due to outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic, RBI vide circular DOR.No.BP.BC.47/21.04.048/ 2019-20 dated 27 March 2020 has directed banks
and financial institutions to provide moratorium of 3 months to borrowers on all payments falling due between 1 March 2020 and 31 May 2020 and vide circular RBI/2019-
20/244 DOR.No.BP.BC.71/ 21.04.048/ 2019-20 for all payments falling due between 1 June 2020 and 31 August 2020 to all eligible borrowers classified as standard.
Accordingly, the Company has availed moratorium with respect to the principal and interest.

Note 3: Term Loan from HDFC Bank, under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS), was availed and repayable in 36 monthly instalments from April 2020. The
loan carries an interest of yearly MCLR rate plus 0.75%. The term loan is secured by equitable mortgage on immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on all current and movable
assets, both present and future.



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

17      Provisions 
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity (refer note 36) 4,548.52             1,963.52             

4,548.52             1,963.52             
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences -                      641.95                

-                      641.95                
4,548.52             2,605.47             

18      Other liabilities
Current
Advances from patients -                      2,437.48             
Statutory dues payables 3,694.76             3,467.25             

3,694.76             5,904.73             

19      Trade payables
 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                      -                      
 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 71,838.97           65,965.17           

71,838.97           65,965.17           

All trade payables are 'current'. The average credit period taken is 30-60 days.
The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 38

Particulars  Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

-                      -                      
-                      -                      
-                      -                      

-                      -                      

-                      -                      
-                      -                      

The amount of interest paid under the Act, along with the amounts of the payment made beyond the appointed day during
the year

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the
Act

Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act") based on the information available with the Company are given
below:

The interest due on the principal remaining outstanding as at the end of the year 



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

 Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

20      Revenue from operations 
Income from hospital services and medical services 5,41,675.83                 5,86,980.62                 
Revenue from pharmacy 1,50,075.26                 1,30,949.19                 
Other operating revenue 1,467.98                      2,685.56                      

6,93,219.07                 7,20,615.37                 

Refer notes below
(i) Category of Customers

Cash 4,38,156.32                 4,93,229.99                 
Credit 2,55,062.74                 2,27,385.37                 

6,93,219.07                 7,20,615.37                 
(ii) Nature of treatment

In- patient 4,72,325.72                 4,99,545.90                 
Out- patient 69,350.11                    87,434.72                    

5,41,675.83                 5,86,980.62                 

21      Other income 
Interest income under the effective interest method on:

Fixed deposits with banks 634.34                         373.95                         
Interest on income tax refund 3,623.08                      -                               
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) -                               17.22                           
Liabilities no longer required written back 403.25                         1,474.21                      

4,660.67                      1,865.37                      

22      Purchases of stock-in-trade
Medicines and consumables 1,85,238.58                 1,58,263.48                 

1,85,238.58                 1,58,263.48                 

23      Change in inventories of stock-in-trade
Medicines and medical consumables:

Opening stock 6,887.35                      6,629.04                      
Closing stock (6,182.27)                    (6,887.35)                    

705.08                         (258.31)                       

24      Professional fees to consultant doctors 
Professional fees to consultant doctors 1,37,594.02                 1,54,169.52                 

1,37,594.02                 1,54,169.52                 

25      Lab Outsourcing Charges
Lab outsourcing charges 6,334.28                      6,482.63                      

6,334.28                      6,482.63                      

26      Employee benefits expense
Salaries and allowances 1,42,861.68                 1,48,497.03                 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 36) 8,648.94                      8,360.19                      
Expenses related to post employment defined benefit plans(refer note 36) 3,170.00                      2,479.99                      
Expenses related to compensated absences (641.95)                       636.00                         
Staff welfare expenses 6,000.58                      5,234.00                      

1,60,039.25                 1,65,207.21                 

27      Finance cost
Interest on borrowings 34,477.49                    41,524.95                    
Other borrowing costs 4,046.60                      3,654.02                      

38,524.09                    45,178.97                    

28      Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 22,181.48                    24,943.57                    
Amortisation on other intangible assets (refer note 5) 777.05                         278.15                         

22,958.53                    25,221.72                    

29      Other expenses 
Food and beverage 11,529.31                    11,732.19                    
Power, water and fuel 22,403.34                    23,207.77                    
Rent 2,595.28                      3,141.81                      
Insurance 1,547.26                      1,279.33                      
Repairs and maintenance - Buildings 1,254.97                      1,251.13                      
Repairs and maintenance - Others 45,448.02                    40,292.01                    
Communication 1,612.39                      1,447.07                      
Advertising and promotional expenses 7,835.26                      14,021.91                    
Rates and taxes 2,588.81                      1,953.61                      
Legal, professional and other consultancy 2,621.12                      3,921.71                      
Auditors remuneration (refer Note 33) 850.00                         750.00                         
Corporate social responsibility* 731.45                         -                               
Allowances for credit losses on financial assets 11,191.50                    10,477.67                    
Travelling and conveyance 617.42                         1,371.90                      
Miscellaneous expenses 6,836.21                      2,435.19                      

1,19,662.34                 1,17,283.31                 

* Details of corporate social responsibility
 - Gross amount required to be spent during the year 731.44                         -                               
 - Amount spent during the year on:
   Construction/acquisition of an asset -                               -                               
   On purposes other than above 731.45                         -                               

731.45                         -                               

The Company’s other operating revenue comprises primarily of canteen sales (sales of food and beverages), revenue from courses conducted at
the hospital, income from revenue sharing agreements.



PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
(All amounts in Indian rupees thousands)

30 Income taxes
(a) Income tax assets/(liability)  As at 

31 March 2021 
 As at 

31 March 2020 

Income tax payments, including taxes withheld 29,484.79                               69,987.52                               
Less: Provision made towards tax liabilities 2,015.12                                 -                                          
Net income tax assets/(liability) at the end 27,469.67                               69,987.52                               

(b) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 
 As at 

31 March 2020 
Current tax 2,015.12                                 -                                          
Deferred tax -                                          679.87                                    
Tax expense for the year 2,015.12                                 679.87                                    

(c) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 
Year ended 

31 March 2020

Current tax                                              -                                                -   
Current tax for earlier years                                              -                                                -   
Deferred tax (including MAT credit entitlement)                                      254.55                                      679.87 
Tax expense for the year                                      254.55                                      679.87 

(d) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars  Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

Profit before tax 26,823.57                               50,252.34                               
Statutory income tax rate 27.82% 27.82%
Tax expense /(asset) 7,462.32                                 13,980.20                               
Other temporary differences (55,460.69)                              (30,527.96)                              
Un-recognised deferred tax assets 50,013.49                               16,547.76                               
Income tax expense 2,015.12                                 -                                          

(e) Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the followings:
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 
 As at 

31 March 2020 
Deferred tax asset
MAT credit entitlement 2,015.12                                 -                                          
Trade receivables (loss allowances) 4,247.40                                 5,813.53                                 
Provision for employee benefits 1,265.40                                 858.46                                    
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss 12,817.74                               9,875.77                                 
Total deferred tax asset 20,345.66                               16,547.76                               
Deferred tax liabilities
On account of fair valuation land * 68,360.00                               68,360.00                               
Excess of depreciation on property, plant and equipment under Income Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation under Companies Act. 20,345.66                               16,547.76                               
Total deferred tax liability 88,705.66                               84,907.76                               
Deferred tax (liability) net (68,360.00)                              (68,360.00)                              

* The deferred tax liability arising on the fair valuation is recognised based on tax rates applicable to the long-term capital gains.

(f) Movement in temporary differences
Particulars As at 

1 April 2020
Recognised in Profit and 

loss Recognise in OCI  As at 
31 March 2021 

MAT credit entitlement -                                                                            2,015.12 -                                          2,015.12                                 
Trade receivables (loss allowances)                                   5,813.53                                 (1,566.13) -                                                                            4,247.40 
Provision for employee benefits                                      858.46                                      406.94 -                                                                            1,265.40 
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss                                   9,875.77                                   2,941.97 -                                                                          12,817.74 
On account of fair valuation land *                               (68,360.00)                                              -   -                                                                        (68,360.00)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets                               (16,547.76)                                 (3,797.90) -                                                                        (20,345.66)

                              (68,360.00)                                              -                                                -                                 (68,360.00)

 Movement in temporary differences
Particulars As at 

1 April 2019
Recognised in Profit and 

loss Recognise in OCI As at
31 March 2020

Trade receivables (loss allowances)                                   3,478.37                                   2,335.16 -                                                                            5,813.53 
Provision for employee benefits                                      469.14                                    (290.55) 254.55                                                                         858.46 
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss                                 11,526.52                                 (1,650.75) -                                                                            9,875.77 
On account of fair valuation land                               (68,360.00)                                              -   -                                                                        (68,360.00)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets                               (15,474.03)                                 (1,073.73) -                                                                        (16,547.76)

                              (68,360.00)                                    (679.87)                                      254.55                               (68,360.00)

(g) Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Particulars

Gross amount  Unrecognised tax effect Gross amount  Unrecognised tax effect 
Tax losses (business loss)                                              -                                                -                                   53,413.48                                 14,859.63 
Tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation)                              1,79,775.31                                 50,013.49                              2,63,476.34                                 73,299.12 
Total deferred tax asset                              1,79,775.31                                 50,013.49                              3,16,889.82                                 88,158.75 

(h) Tax losses carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised expire as follows:
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 
 Expiry date  As at 

31 March 2020  Expiry date 

Brought forward losses                                              -                                                -                                1,09,035.43  Various dates 
Brought forward depreciation                              2,25,849.14  Infinite period                              2,63,476.34  Infinite period 
Total tax losses carried forward                              2,25,849.14                              3,72,511.77 

The standard rate of corporation tax applied to reported profit is 27.82 per cent (2019-20: 27.82 per cent). The Company has not opted for concessional tax rate regime effective from financial year 2019-20.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can use the benefits there from: 

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the above items, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can use the benefits. The above is arrived 
basis the balances as on date. The deductible temporary difference do not expire under the current tax legislation. 

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. The Company has recognised deferred tax assets arising out of tax losses (unabsorbed depreciation) to the extent of net deferred tax
liability on account of taxable temporary differences.

As at 
31 March 2021

 As at 
31 March 2020 

* The deferred tax liability arising on the fair valuation is recognised based on tax rates applicable to the long-term capital gains.
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31 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Contingent liabilities

2,832.72              2,832.72             
Commitments

2,25,543.46         44,465.23           

32 Earnings per share
A. Basic earnings per share

i) Net profit attributable to equity share holders 
Particulars As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Net profit for the year attributable to equity share holders 24,808.45            50,252.34           

ii) Weighted average number of equity shares (basic)
Particulars As at 

31 March 2021
As at 

31 March 2020
Opening balance (Refer note 14) 4,140                   4,140                  
Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each for the year 4,140                   4,140                  
Earning per share, basic 5.99                     12.14                  

B. Diluted earning per share

33
Year Ended

 31 March 2021
Year Ended 

31 March 2020
750.00                 600.00                
100.00                 150.00                
850.00                 750.00                

34 Operating leases

35 Segmental reporting

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive instruments as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. Hence, the Basic and Diluted EPS are the same.

Medical claims against the Company

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advance) and not provided for

b. On 28th February 2019, the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India has delivered a judgment clarifying the principles that need to be applied in determining the
components of salaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF) contributions need to be made by establishments. Basis this judgment, the Company has re-
computed its liability towards PF from the month of March 2019 and has paid PF as per Supreme Court judgement. In respect of the earlier periods/years, the
Company has been legally advised that there are numerous interpretative challenges on the application of the judgment retrospectively. Based on such legal advice,
the management believes that it is impracticable at this stage to reliably measure the provision required, if any, and accordingly, no provision has been made towards
the same. Necessary adjustments, if any, will be made to the books as more clarity emerges on this subject.

The calculation of profit attributable to equity share holders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the purpose of basic earnings  per shar
calculations are as follows:

a. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent
liability where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its
financial position. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

c. The Company does not have any long-term commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitments/contracts, including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

Payment to auditors (included under legal and professional charges, net of GST)

The Company is obligated under cancellable operating leases for its office premises which are renewable at the option of both the lessor and lessee. Total rental
expenses under such leases amounted to INR 595.80 thousand (previous year: INR 570.88 thousands)

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating segments and
related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the "management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating
segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM evaluates the
Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole operating segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare Services’.
Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in the financial statements.
The Company operates in India and revenue generations is from a wide spread of the customers and hence the group wide disclosures of major customers are not
applicable.

Particulars
Statutory audit 
Tax audit
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36 Employee benefits

A

Particulars  Year ended 
31 March 2021 

 Year ended 
31 March 2020 

Defined benefit obligation liability 33,381.34           29,028.33           
Plan assets 28,832.79           27,064.81           
Net defined benefit liability 4,548.55             1,963.52             

B Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
 Year ended 

31 March 2021 
 Year ended 

31 March 2020 
            29,028.34             22,959.77 
            (1,475.00)                (495.28)
              3,043.00               2,633.13 

Past service cost
              1,814.00               1,440.74 

- changes in demographic assumptions                          -                      (0.85)
- changes in financial assumptions                  342.00                  686.97 
- experience adjustments                  629.00               1,803.86 

            33,381.34             29,028.34 

Reconciliation of present value of plan assets
 As at 

31 March 2021 
 As at 

31 March 2020 
            27,064.79             23,878.77 
              1,500.00               1,916.64 
            (1,475.00)                (370.64)
              1,687.00               1,593.87 
                   56.00                    46.15 
            28,832.79             27,064.79 

Net defined benefit liability               4,548.55               1,963.55 

C (i) Expenses recognised in the profit and loss
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 
 As at 

31 March 2020 
Current Service cost               3,043.00               2,633.13 
Interest cost 1,814.00             1,440.74             
Past service cost -                      -                      
Interest income (1,687.00)            (1,593.87)            
Net gratuity cost 3,170.00             2,480.00             

(ii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 
 As at 

31 March 2020 
Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation

                 971.00               2,489.97 

Return on plan asset excluding interest income                  (56.00)                  (46.15)
                 915.00               2,443.82 

D Plan asset
Plan asset comprises of the following:

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

Insurance policy 28,832.79           27,064.79           

E Actuarial valuation

Investment risk

Interest rate risk
Longevity risk

Salary risk

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted average)
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

6.10% 6.25%
7.00% 7.00%

30.00% p.a at 
younger ages 

reducing to 
5.00% p.a% at 

older ages

30.00% p.a at 
younger ages 

reducing to 
5.00% p.a% at 

older ages
IALM 2012-14 

(Ult.)
IALM 2012-14 

(Ult.)

Benefit paid

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (‘Gratuity Act’). Under the Gratuity Act, employee who has completed five years of
service is entitled to specific benefit. The gratuity benefit provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 / 30 days’ salary payable for each completed year of service.
Based on an actuarial valuation, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet
date:

Particulars

Balance at beginning of the year 

Particulars

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the
plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method. The defined 
benefit plan typically exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability denominated in Indian Rupee is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. For other
defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to high quality corporate bond yields when
there is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
Currently the plan in India is investments in government securities and other debt instruments.

Contributions paid into the plan
Benefits paid
Interest Income
Return on plan asset recognised in other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Current service cost

Interest cost
Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income

Balance at the end of the year 

Balance at beginning of the year at fair value

Future salary growth

Mortality rate

(i) Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:

Attrition rate

Discount rate
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Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
6 years 4.21 years

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

Particulars
Increase Decrease

Discount rate (1% movement) (2,128.00)            2,422.00             
Future salary growth (1% movement) 2,377.00             2,130.00             
Withdrawal rate (1% movement) (154.00)               170.00                

Particulars
Increase Decrease

Discount rate (0.5% movement) (575.04)               602.04                
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 593.36                (572.77)               
Withdrawal rate (rate multiplied by 110% / 90%) (146.70)               161.98                

F. Defined contribution plan
Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss For the year 

ended 
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended 
31 March 2020

Contribution to provident fund               8,648.94               8,360.19 
Components recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 8,648.94             8,360.19             

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the changes in assumptions would occur
in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised
in the balance sheet. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published statistics by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.
The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The discount rate is based on the government securities
yield.
Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary in Indian rupees and there are no other foreign defined benefit gratuity plan.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and withdrawal rate. Reasonably possible
changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions holding other assumptions constant would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown
below:

31 March 2020

31 March 2021

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations(continued)
The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the year ended 31 March 2021 and year ended 31 March 2020 as set out below

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation
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37 Related parties

A. Related Party relationships

Names of related parties and description of relationship with the Company:

(a) Holding company Aster DM Healthcare Limited, India

II) Other related parties with whom the entity had transactions during the year

(a) Key managerial personnel and their relatives (KMP)
Dr. U. B. Damale Managing director
Dr. S. M. Navare Whole time director
Dr. Charusheela Damale Wife of managing director
Dr. Sujata Navare Wife of whole time director
Mr. Moolakkadath Salahuddin Independent Director
Mr. Azhumulathil Abdulrahiman Salim Independent Director
Mr. Sreenath Reddy Director
Mr. Wilson Joseph Thadathil Director
Mr. Vikram Singh Beniwal Director
Dr. Harish Pillai Additional Director

B. Related party transactions:
The Company has entered into the following transactions with related parties

Sl. No. Nature of transaction
 Year ended 

31 March 2021 
 Year ended 

31 March 2020 
1 Managerial remuneration

                   2,775.00                    3,600.00 
                      582.00                       600.00 

2 Short term employee benefits
1,567.46                  1,834.40                  
7,610.19                  8,004.16                  
2,468.77                  2,807.24                  

908.86                     779.57                     
3 Aster DM Healthcare Limited

-                           -                           
2,636.84                  2,611.74                  

Other Expenses 618.26                     684.37                     
Reimbursement of expenditure 6,335.02                  359.12                     

C. Balance receivable / (payable) as at the year end
Sl. No. Particulars  As at 

31 March 2021 
As at 

31 March 2020

1 Salaries and professional fee
Dr. U. B. Damale (325.32)                    (333.69)                    
Dr. S. M. Navare (724.75)                    (726.91)                    
Dr. Charusheela Damale (232.86)                    (219.11)                    
Dr. Sujata Navare (125.65)                    (34.92)                      

2 Other financial liabilities

Aster DM Healthcare Limited
Dues to Holding Company (17,092.03)               (7,621.05)                 

Related party transactions

Dr. U. B. Damale
Dr. S. M. Navare 

Dr. U. B. Damale
Dr. S. M. Navare
Dr. Charusheela Damale
Dr. Sujata Navare

Consultancy fee
Guarantee commission paid
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38 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management
A Accounting classifications and fair values

  As at 31 March 2021

Particulars Note Financial assets at 
amortised cost

Mandatorily at 
FVTPL

Other financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost

Total carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 12 82,186.60             -                   -                        82,186.60            -         -              -            -              
Other bank balances 13 602.03                  -                   -                        602.03                 -         -              -            -              
Trade receivables 11 61,906.91             -                   -                        61,906.91            -         -              -            -              
Loans 7 1,925.69               -                   -                        1,925.69              -         -              -            -              
Other financial assets 8 9,574.58               -                   -                        9,574.58              -         -              -            -              
Financial assets measured at fair value -              
Investments 6 10.00                    -                   -                        10.00                   -              -              
Total 1,56,205.81          -                   -                        1,56,205.81         -         -              -            -              

Liabilities
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade payables 19 -                       -                   71,838.97              71,838.97            -         -              -            -              
Borrowings including current maturities 15 -                       -                   5,06,099.40           5,06,099.40         -         -              -            -              
Other financial liabilities 16 -                       -                   26,304.63              26,304.63            -         -              -            -              
Total -                       -                   6,04,243.00           6,04,243.00         -         -              -            -              

 As at 31 March 2020

Particulars Note Financial assets at 
amortised cost

Mandatorily at 
FVTPL

Other financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost

Total carrying 
value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Cash and cash equivalents 12 19,938.60             -                   -                        19,938.60            -         -              -            -              
Other bank balances 13 10,331.82             -                   -                        10,331.82            -         -              -            -              
Trade receivables 11 56,162.58             -                   -                        56,162.58            -         -              -            -              
Loans 7 2,345.69               -                   -                        2,345.69              -         -              -            -              
Other financial assets 8 5,267.25               -                   -                        5,267.25              -         -              -            -              
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 6 10.00                    -                   -                        10.00                   -         -              -            -              
Total 94,055.94             -                   -                        94,055.94            -         -              -            -              

Liabilities
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade payables 19 -                       -                   65,965.17              65,965.17            -         -              -            -              
Borrowings including current maturities 15 -                       -                   4,65,545.91           4,65,545.91         -         -              -            -              
Other financial liabilities 16 -                       -                   19,218.99              19,218.99            -         -              -            -              
Total -                       -                   5,50,730.07           5,50,730.07         -         -              -            -              

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

 Fair value

Carrying amount  Fair value

Carrying amount
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38 Financial Instruments- Fair values and risk management (continued)
B Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
a) Credit Risk
b) Liquidity risk
c) Market risk

i) Risk management framework

ii) Credit risk

Allowance for credit loss

Balance at the beginning 20,896.94             10,419.27              
Impairment loss recognised/ reversed 11,191.50             10,477.67              
Amounts written off (16,820.98)            -                        
Balance at the end 15,267.46             20,896.94              

iii) Liquidity risk

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2021

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Trade payables 71,838.97                    -                        71,838.97              
Current borrowings -                               -                        
Non current borrowings (including current maturities) 73,134.35                    4,32,965.05          5,06,099.40           
Other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities) 26,304.63                    -                        26,304.63              
Total 1,71,277.95                 4,32,965.05          6,04,243.00           

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of 31 March 2020
Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Trade payables 21,200.18                    -                        21,200.18              
Current borrowings 54,814.53                    -                        4,65,545.91           
Non current borrowings (including current maturities) 26,557.72                    3,84,173.66          
Other financial liabilities (excluding current maturities) 63,983.99                    -                        63,983.99              
Total 1,66,556.42                 3,84,173.66          5,50,730.08           

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework.
The Company's board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. 

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for
credit. The collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general, economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of both the current as well as forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to INR 61,906.91 (31 March 2020: INR 56,162.58) and unbilled
receivables amounting to INR 4,276.94 (31 March 2020 - INR 2,624.54). 

The movement in lifetime ECL in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows:

 As at 
31 March 2021 

As at 
31 March 2020

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. There is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally transacts with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in shares.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
management of the Company's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company's reputation. 



Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
82,186.60                    -                        82,186.60              

602.03                         -                        
61,906.91                    -                        61,906.91              

-                               1,925.69               1,925.69                
4,276.94                      5,297.64               9,574.58                

Total 1,48,972.48                 7,223.33               1,55,593.78           

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
19,938.60                    -                        19,938.60              
10,331.82                    -                        
56,162.58                    -                        56,162.58              

-                               2,345.69               2,345.69                
5,062.02                      205.23                  5,267.25                

Total 91,495.02                    2,550.92               83,714.12              

iv)

Interest rate risk

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Financial liabilities (bank borrowings)  As at 

31 March 2021 
 As at 

31 March 2020 
Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturities 5,06,099.40          4,10,731.38           

Sensitivity 
Particulars

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

1% increase in MCLR rate (5,060.99)            (4,107.31)                     (5,060.99)              (4,107.31)              
1% decrease in MCLR rate 5,060.99             4,107.31                      5,060.99               4,107.31                

Other bank balances

Other bank balances

Financial assets of INR 1,56,205.81 thousands as at 31 March 2021 carried at amortised cost is in the form of cash and cash equivalents, deposits, etc. where the Company has
assessed the counterparty credit risk. Trade receivables of INR 61,906.91 thousands as at 31 March, 2021 carried at amortised cost and is valued considering provision for allowance
using expected credit loss method (if any). In addition to the historical pattern of credit loss, we have considered the likelihood of increased credit risk and consequential default
considering emerging situations due to COVID-19. This assessment is not based on any mathematical model but an assessment considering the impact immediately seen in the
demand outlook and the financial strength of the customers in respect of whom amounts are receivable. The Company has specifically evaluated the potential impact with respect to
Healthcare service sector. The Company closely monitors its customers who are being impacted. 

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because the Company borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The Company's significant interest rate risk arises from long-
term borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate on the Company’s financial instruments is based on market
rates. The Company monitors the movement in interest rates on an ongoing basis. The risk is managed by the Company maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating
rate borrowings. 

Market risk

The Company is using the cash inflows from the financial assets and the available bank facilities to manage the liquidity. The table below provides the cash inflows from significant 
financial assets as of 31 March 2021:

Cash and Cash equivalents

Trade receivables 
Loans
Other financial assets 

The Company is using the cash inflows from the financial assets and the available bank facilities to manage the liquidity. The table below provides the cash inflows from significant 
financial assets as of 31 March 2020:

Cash and Cash equivalents

The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. A one per cent increase or decrease is used when 
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. The Company's 
sensitivity to interest rates has increased in the current year due to the additional variable rate long term borrowings taken during the year.

Trade receivables 
Loans

Impact on profit or (loss)  Impact on equity, net of tax 

Other financial assets 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices. 
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39 Capital management

 As at 
31 March 2021 

 As at 
31 March 2020 

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company                   3,40,643.01                 3,16,749.56 
As a percentage of total capital 40% 40%

Long-term borrowings including current maturities                   5,06,099.40                 4,10,731.38 
Short-term borrowings                                   -   54,814.53                  
Total borrowings                   5,06,099.40                 4,65,545.91 
As a percentage of total capital 60% 60%

Total capital (equity and borrowings)                   8,46,742.41                 7,82,295.47 

40

41  

42  

(as previously stated) (as restated)
Other Expenses                                            1,23,765.94 117283.31

                                                           -                                      6,482.63 
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
PRERANA HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U85110PN1996PLC104292

Dr. U. B. Damale Dr. S. M. Navare
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN 00333654 DIN 00334421
Kolhapur
29 July 2021 29 July 2021

Kolhapur

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 and Code on Wages, 2019 ['Codes'] relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits in September 2020 and the
same has received Presidential Assent. The Codes have been published in the Gazette of lndia. However, the date on which the Codes will come into effect has not yet been notified. The Company will need to assess
the impact of the above. The impact will be recorded in the first period after the Codes become effective.

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors capital on the basis of
return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio.
For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity reserves.

The capital structure as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 was as follows:

Particulars

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. This pandemic resulted in disruption to regular business operations due to lockdown, disruptions in transportation, travel bans,
quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures imposed by the government. The Company adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order to protect the health of its employees and ensure
business continuity with minimal disruption and has considered available internal and external information up to the date of approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors. The Company has used the
principles of prudence in applying judgements, estimates and assumptions including sensitivity analysis and the Company has evaluated impact of the pandemic in assessing the recoverability of property plant and
equipment (including Capital work in progress), investments, intangibles, inventories, receivables and other assets based on its review of current indicators of future economic conditions. Based on current estimates,
including the availability of financing facilities for maintaining liquidity, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of these assets. Further, the Company has taken various measures to reduce its fixed
cost - for example, salary reductions, optimization of administrative, sales and marketing costs, deferment of capex along with judicious resource allocation and requesting for the waiver of minimum guarantee fee and
revenue share for hospital premises taken on lease. The eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that which has been estimated as on the date of approval of these financial
statements. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions and the consequent impact on its business, if any, and any significant impact of these changes would be
recognized in the financial statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions arise.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has disclosed laboratory outsourcing charges as a separate item of expenditure previously included in other expenses. Comparative numbers have been reclassified 
accordingly.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020, were audited by B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants.

Particulars Year Ended 31 March 2020

Laboratory Outsourcing Charges



Prerana Hospital Limited  
Notes to the financial statements 
 
1. Company overview   

Prerana Hospital Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 3 December 1996 as a limited company. 
The registered office of the Company is located at R. S. No 628, ‘B’ Ward, near Shastri Nagar KMT 
Workshop, Kolhapur 416012. The Company was converted into a public limited company on  
12 March 2001. The Company is primarily engaged in the operations of healthcare facilities. The Company 
is a subsidiary of Aster DM Healthcare Limited (‘the holding company’). 

2. Basis of preparation 
A.      Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards  
(“Ind AS”) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and the relevant 
amended rules prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued 
thereunder. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 22 June 2021. 

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

B. Functional and presentation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional 
currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in thousands, unless otherwise stated. 

C. Basis of measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items: 

Items Measurement basis 
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value 
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present 

value of defined benefit obligations  

D. Use of estimates and judgements 
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.  
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed by the management on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

Judgements, Assumptions and estimation uncertainties  

Information about judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of 
resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2021 is included in the following notes: 
- Note 4 and 5 - Measurement of useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets; 
- Note 36 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions; 
- Note 30 - Recognition of deferred tax asset: availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses 

carried forward can be used; 
- Note 31 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the 

likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources; 
- Note 38 - Impairment of financial assets; 
- Note 34 - Leases 
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2. Basis of preparation (continued) 

D.      Use of estimates and judgements (continued) 

Estimation uncertainties relating to COVID-19 
In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. This pandemic 
resulted in disruption to regular business operations due to lockdown, disruptions in transportation, travel 
bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures imposed by the government.  
The Company adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order to protect the health of its 
employees and ensure business continuity with minimal disruption and has considered available internal 
and external information upto the date of approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors. 
The Company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgements, estimates and assumptions 
including sensitivity analysis and the Company has evaluated impact of the pandemic in assessing the 
recoverability of property plant and equipment (including Capital work in progress), investments, 
intangibles, inventories, receivables and other assets based on its review of current indicators of future 
economic conditions. Based on current estimates, including the availability of financing facilities for 
maintaining liquidity, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of these assets. Further, 
the Company has taken various measures to reduce its fixed cost - for example, salary reductions, 
optimization of administrative, sales and marketing costs, deferment of capex along with judicious 
resource allocation and requesting for the waiver of minimum guarantee fee and revenue share for hospital 
premises taken on lease. The eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different 
from that which has been estimated as on the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company 
will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions and the consequent impact 
on its business, if any, and any significant impact of these changes would be recognized in the financial 
statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions arise. 

a. Measurement of fair values 

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control 
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. Significant valuation issues are reported to the 
Company’s audit committee. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows: 
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). 
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data  

(unobservable inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far 
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of 
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of 
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following 
notes: 
- Share-based payment arrangements 
- Financial instruments 
- Fair value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
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2.  Basis of preparation (continued) 

D.      Use of estimates and judgements (continued) 
 

b.    Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
          Amendments 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. 
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2021. 
On 24 March 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule 
III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of Schedule III and are 
applicable from April 1, 2021. The Company is evaluating the effect of the amendments on its financial 
statements. 

 
E. Going concern 

The paid-up share capital and the accumulated losses of the Company as at 31 March 2021 are Rs. 
41,396.66 thousands and Rs. 39,672.21 thousands respectively. 

Profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 is Rs. 24,808.45 thousands and net cash inflow is Rs. 62,248.00 
thousands. Management believes that the Company will be able to continue its operations on a going 
concern basis and will meet all its liabilities as they fall due for payment in the foreseeable future at least 
for the period of twelve months from the date adoption of financial statements and based on business 
strategies and operating plans which will enable the Company to generate operating cash flows in the 
future and reverse the accumulated losses. 

The financial statements have accordingly been prepared on a going concern basis. 

3.  Significant accounting policies 
3.1 Property, plant and equipment  
i. Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and 
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost 
of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and 
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and 
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended 
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.  

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, outstanding at each balance sheet 
date are shown under other non-current assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for its 
intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. 
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3.       Significant accounting policies (continued) 
3.1     Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

ii.       Subsequent expenditure and derecognition 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated 
with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal 
or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

 

iii. Depreciation 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment are provided on the straight-line method over the useful 
lives of the assets estimated by the Management. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period 
is proportionately charged. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease term or useful lives of 
assets, whichever is lower. The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the 
current and comparative periods are as follows: 
 

Class of assets Useful life 
Buildings 60 
Plant and equipment 5 
Medical equipment* 10 
Motor vehicles * 5 
Computer equipment 3 
Furniture and fixtures * 5 
Books * 5 
Electrical equipment * 5 

 
* For the above-mentioned classes of assets, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best 
represent the useful lives of these assets based on internal assessment and supported by technical advice, 
where necessary, which is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted 
if appropriate. 

 

3.2 Intangible assets 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised over their respective 
individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the asset is available 
to the Company for its use and is included in depreciation and amortisation expenses in statement of profit 
and loss. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated 
useful life of Software is 3 years.  
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3.       Significant accounting policies (continued) 
3.2     Intangible assets (continued) 
 

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the 
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the 
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain 
the expected future cash flows from the asset. 
 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit and loss as 
incurred. 
 
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

 

3.3 Inventories 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories comprises 
purchase price, and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
The Company uses the weighted average method to determine the cost of inventory consisting of medicines 
and medical consumables.  

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable 
values is made on an item-by-item basis. 

3.4 Impairment 
i. Impairment of financial assets 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets measured at 
amortised cost. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit 
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 
The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime 
ECL. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference 
to past default experience of the debtors and an analysis of the debtors' current financial position, adjusted 
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors 
operate, and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting 
date. 

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. 
Measurement of expected credit losses 

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as 
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 
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3.       Significant accounting policies (continued) 
3.4     Impairment (continued) 

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet: 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets. 

Write-off: 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that 
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the 
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the 
amounts subject to the write off.  

ii.       Impairment of non- financial assets 
The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, 
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any.  

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into 
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash 
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.   

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, the recoverable amount i.e., the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-
in-use is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the 
CGU to which the asset belongs. 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and 
loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable 
amount of the asset.  

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised 
recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized 
for the asset in prior years. 

3.5 Employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefits  
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as 
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. Short-term 
employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, 
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 
provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.  

 
 



Prerana Hospital Limited  
Notes to the financial statements 

 
3.      Significant accounting policies (continued) 
3.5 Employee benefits (continued) 

Post-employment benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 
contributions and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes 
specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for 
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of 
profit and loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees. 

Defined Benefit plans 

Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the 
projected unit credit method. 

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements of 
the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognised in other comprehensive income shall not be reclassified 
to statement of profit and loss in a subsequent period. However, the Company transfers those amounts 
recognised in other comprehensive income within equity. The Company determines the net interest expense 
on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined 
benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into 
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and 
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised 
in statement of profit and loss. 

Other long term employee benefits 

The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment 
benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current 
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related 
assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation 
using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. 

Compensated absences 

With effect from 31 March 2020, the Company does not have any long-term employee benefits under 
compensated absences due to change in policy for compensated absences. 

Share- based payment transactions  
 

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised 
as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees 
unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate 
of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to 
be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do 
meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment 
awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to 
reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.  
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3.      Significant accounting policies (continued) 

3.6 Provisions (other than employee benefits) 
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated 
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect 
of the time value of money is material). 

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Company 
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The 
provision for an onerous contract is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of 
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision 
is made, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract. 

3.7 Revenue 

Revenue from contract with customers 

The Company generates revenue from rendering of medical and healthcare services, sale of medicines and 
other related activities. Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, establishes a comprehensive 
framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. Under Ind AS 115, 
revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or services.  

Disaggregation of revenue 

The Company disaggregates revenue from hospital services (medical and healthcare services), sale of 
medicines and other operating income. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how 
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of Company’s revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, 
market and other economic factors. 

Contract balances 

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for sale of services where invoice is raised 
as trade receivables, where invoice has not been raised as unbilled revenue and advance consideration as 
advance from customers. 

Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company 
recognises revenue when it transfers control over a good or service to a customer. The following details 
provide information about the nature and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts 
with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue recognition policies. 

a) Medical and healthcare services 
The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income from hospital services. 

Revenue from hospital services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related services are rendered 
unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the services rendered 
to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date to the extent of the 
services rendered. Revenue is recognised net of discounts and concessions given to the patients. 

Unbilled receivable represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services are rendered to the 
patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the 
balance sheet date. 
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3.      Significant accounting policies (continued) 
3.7    Revenue (continued) 

b) Sale of medicines 

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and medicines within the hospital premises is recognised when 
the control in the goods are transferred to the customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the 
amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection. 
The amount of revenue recognised is net of sales returns, taxes and duties, wherever applicable. 

 

c) Other operating income 
The Company’s revenue from other operating income comprises primarily of canteen sales (sales of food 
and beverages), revenue from courses conducted at the hospital, income from revenue sharing agreements. 

Revenue from services rendered is based on the agreements/arrangements with the customers as the service is 
performed. Income from sale of food and beverages is recognised at a point in time when control is transferred. 

3.8 Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual 
rate at the date of the transaction.  

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency 
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value 
in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value 
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are 
recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

3.9 Leases 

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease 
At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At inception 
or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required 
by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of 
their relative fair values.  
 

i. Company as a lessee 
The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease 
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the 
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the 
non-lease components.  

 
The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease 
term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall 
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs 
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying 
asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently 
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted 
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line 
method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.  
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3.       Significant accounting policies (continued) 
3.9     Leases (continued) 

The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, 
plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that 
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses 
incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments that 
depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date, residual 
value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise 
that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising 
an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying 
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments 
made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect 
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of 
lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss 
depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced 
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any 
remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss. 

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116, Leases, to short-term leases of all 
assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The lease payments associated with these leases are 
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease 
liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “Other 
expenses” in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

ii. Company as a lessor  
At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a 
finance lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight- line 
basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based 
on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. Amounts 
due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net 
investment in the leases. When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the 
head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to 
the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease 
is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the 
sub-lease as an operating lease.  

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue 
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract. 

 
iii.   Impact of COVID-19  

 

The Company does not foresee any large-scale contraction in demand which could result in significant 
down-sizing of its employee base rendering the physical infrastructure redundant. The leases that the  
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3.9     Leases (continued) 

Company has entered with lessors are long term in nature and changes in terms of those leases expected 
due to the COVID-19 are not expected to have impact in the financial statements for the year ended 31 
March 2021. 

The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 116 for the first time in the current year. The 
amendments provide practical relief to lessees in accounting for rent concessions occurring as a direct 
consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practical expedient to Ind AS 116. The practical expedient 
permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. 
A lessee that makes this election shall account for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-
19-related rent concession the same way it would account for the change applying Ind AS 116 if the change 
were not a lease modification. 

 
The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19 
and only if all of the following conditions are met: 

 
(a) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same 

as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; 
 
(b) Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021 (a rent 

concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before 30 June 2021 and 
increased lease payments that extend beyond 30 June 2021); and 

(c) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. 
 
The Company has applied the practical expedient retrospectively to all eligible rent concessions and has 
not restated prior period figures. 

3.10 Recognition of dividend income, interest income or interest expense 

Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on the date on which the right to receive 
payment is established. 

Interest on deployment of surplus funds is recognized using the time proportionate method, based on the 
transactional interest rates. 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.  
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or 
the amortised cost of the financial liability.  
In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying 
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. 
 

3.11 Income tax 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the 
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

i. Current tax 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and 
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax 
reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, 
if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted 
by the reporting date.   
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3.11   Income tax (continued) 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off 
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered 
probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the 
best estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The assessment is based on the judgement of tax 
professionals within the Company supported by previous experience in respect of such activities and in 
certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice. 

ii. Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding tax bases used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be utilised. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may 
not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax 
asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other 
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. 
Deferred tax assets – unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ 
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be 
realised. 
 
 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised 
or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 
date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable 
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or 
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

3.12   Borrowing cost 
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency 
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection 
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset 
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part 
of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

3.13   Financial instruments 
 
i. Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other 
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
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3.13   Financial instruments (continued) 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables that do 
not have a significant financing component which are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - FVTPL) are added to or 
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 
 

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement 
 

Financial assets 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as either at amortised cost, FVTPL or fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVOCI).  
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the 
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 
 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions: 
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 

flows; and  
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably 
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI – equity 
investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 
 
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured 
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may 
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is 
held at investment level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is 
provided to management. The information considered includes: 

-  the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in 
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, 
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of 
any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 
business model) and how those risks are managed; 

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales   
and expectations about future sales activity. 
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Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not 
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets. 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair 
value basis are measured at FVTPL. 

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk 
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic 
lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company 
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset 
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it 
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;  
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;  
- prepayment and extension features; and 
- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse features). 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial assets at 
FVTPL 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, 
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of 
profit and loss.  

Financial assets at 
amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest 
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in 
statement profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in 
statement of profit and loss. 
 

Equity investments at 
FVOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 
recognised as income in statement profit and loss unless the dividend clearly 
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains 
and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to statement of 
profit and loss. 

 
Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified 
as FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial 
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including 
any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.  
 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any 
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss. 
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iii. Derecognition 

 

Financial assets 
 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred  
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
and does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets 
are not derecognised. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled, or expire. 
The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under 
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified 
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss. 
 

iv. Offsetting  
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, 
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

v. Derivative financial instruments 
The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk 
exposures. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives 
are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in statement of profit and loss. 
 

3.14   Earnings / (loss) per share 
The basic earnings / (loss) per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the 
year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax (including the post tax effect 
of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income 
(net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number 
of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.  
 
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a 
later date. In computing dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive, i.e., which 
reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included. The dilutive potential equity shares are 
adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market 
value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each 
period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share 
splits/reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate. 
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3.15 Cash-flow statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 
The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are 
segregated. 

3.16   Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
3.17   Operating cycle 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
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